SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 15, 2016
9:12 a. m

9:12:15 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:12 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Cick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair

ALSO PRESENT

Sean O Brien, Director, Dvision of Public Assistance,
Departnent of Health and Social Services; Mnica Wndom
Pol icy Devel opnent Chief, Departnent of Public Assistance,
Departnment of Health and Social Services; Chuck Kopp,
Staff, Senator Peter M cciche.

SUVVARY

SB 1 REGULATI ON OF SMOKI NG
SB 1 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for
further consideration.

SB 145 DAY CARE ASSI STANCE & CH LD CARE GRANTS

SB 145 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for
further consideration.

SB 147 SENI OR BENEFI TS PROG. ELI G BILITY



SB 147 was HEARD and HELD in conmittee for
further consideration.

#sb145
SENATE BI LL NO. 145

"An Act relating to the recovery of overpaynents of
day care assistance and child care grants; and
providing for an effective date."

9:13:11 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon di scussed the agenda. She noted that SB
1 would be addressed through a conversation by the
comittee only.

SEAN O BRIEN, DI RECTOR, DIVISION OF PUBLIC ASSI STANCE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVICES, stated that SB
145 was a change in law to allow the child care assistance
program to collect funds through permanent fund dividend
(PFD) garnishnent in instances where voluntary paynment
collection was not possible. He furthered that the change
would be <consistent with the rest of +the division's

col l ection processes. The bill would bring the division in
alignment with recouping overpaynents and m sspent funds.
He continued that the bill supported federal conpliance

with childcare regulations, which required that the
division pursue fraudulent and inproper paynents. He
summari zed that if volunteer recruitnent did not work, the
bill would allow the division to nove forward with PFD
gar ni shnent .

Senator O son asked what prograns currently garni shed PFDs.

MONI CA WNDOM POLICY DEVELOPMENT CH EF, DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLI C  ASSI STANCE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL
SERVICES, |isted the following prograns that were able to
garni sh  PFDs: food stanps, adult public assistance,
tenporary assistance for needy famlies (TANF), and general
relief assi st ance. She summarized that al | public
assistance prograns could garnish the PFD wth the
exception of senior benefits and chil dcare.

9:16: 40 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 03/15/16 9:12 A M



Senat or O son wondered about entities outside of DHSS that
garni shed dividends. He asked about daycare as listed in
the entitlenent prograns.

Ms. Wndom agreed to provide Senator O son information from
the clains unit later in the day. She nentioned the court
system and child support.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon asked for Ms. Wndom to direct
information to her office so she could dissenmnate it to
the comm ttee nenbers.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the retroactivity of the
bill, and referred to the effected date of July 1, 2016;
but saw a reference on page 2 of the bill, "before, on, or
after July 2016." She thought that the |anguage sounded
retroactive, and that the state would be able to collect
funds in the next dividend cycle.

M. OBrien referred to Section 3, which stated that the
bill would take effect July 1, 2016. He specified that the
current program was set up to go back one year, and the
bill would allow the division to collect on the current
year's PFD as a garni shnment.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon OPENED public testinony.
Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

SB 145 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

#sbl147
SENATE BI LL NO. 147

"An Act relating to eligibility requirements of the
Al aska senior benefits paynment program and providing
for an effective date.”

9:19:25 AM

Co- Chair MacKinnon specified that the nobst recent version
of the bill was a commttee substitute from the Senate
Heal th and Soci al Services Committee.

SEAN O BRIEN, D RECTOR, D VISION OF PUBLIC ASSISTANCE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, discussed SB 147,

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 03/15/16 9:12 A M



noting that it made one change to existing law - it would
bring consistency to the aspect that a person nust be a
United States Citizen or qualified alien in order to
eligible for a senior benefits program (as stated on line 9
and line 10 of the first page). He furthered that the
change would allow the division to be nore consistent and
catch up with the intent of the program He thought the
| anguage should have been in the program when it was
originally est abl i shed. The bill woul d al so make
eligibility standards nore simlar across public assistance
progr amns.

Senator Bishop asked how many qualified alien residents
entered the state on an annual basis.

9:22:22 AM
AT EASE

9:22: 55 AM
RECONVENED

M. OBrien specified that the departnent did not have the
requested information, however, there were currently 16
individuals that did not appear to neet the citizenship

requirenents as stated in the bill. He continued that 12 of
the 16 individuals did not neet the 5-year waiting period,
3 people were non-immgrants, and 1 person was an illega

immgrant. He was unsure if he had the data to answer
Senat or Bi shop's question, and stated that he would | ook in
to the matter.

Co-Chair MacKinnon stated that the commttee would check
back with the division for the information. She thought it
m ght behoove the commttee to seek data from the permanent
fund dividend division. She wondered if the eligibility
requirenents in the bill were simlar to those for PFD
eligibility.

MONI CA WNDOM  PCLICY DEVELOPMENT CHI EF, DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLI C  ASSI STANCE, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL
SERVI CES, stated that nobst prograns in the division already
had the eligibility requirenents, and a change was only
required for the senior benefits program

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked Ms. Wndom to provide information
on the eligibility requirements in the bill (pertaining to

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 03/15/16 9:12 A M



residency/citizenship) as conpared to those used by the
per manent fund dividend divi sion.

Ms. Wndom clarified that the permanent fund dividend
eligibility had the sane citizenship and residency
requi renents as the division.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon pointed out the applicability on page 2
of the bill, and wondered if the division would
retroactively qualify the aforenentioned 16 individuals if
the bill was passed.

Ms. Wndomrelated that the program would have to close the
cases of the 16 individuals, who would not qualify if the
bill passed. She noted that the individuals were currently
receiving benefits.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked how the individuals were receiving
benefits if they were not United States citizens.

Ms. W ndom expl ai ned that when the original bill was passed
to create the senior Dbenefits program there was no
citizenship requirement witten in to the bill.

Senat or O son found it troubling that there were
i ndi viduals who were not U S. citizens that were receiving
public assistance, and wondered how nmany other DHSS
prograns allowed for non-citizens to receive public
assi st ance.

Ms. Wndom confirmed that there were no other prograns
under DHSS that qualified non-citizens for public
assi st ance.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon OPENED public testinony.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon CLOSED public testinony.

SB 147 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.

9: 26: 32 AM
AT EASE

9:27: 05 AM
RECONVENED

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 03/15/16 9:12 A M



#sbl
SENATE BILL NO 1

"An Act prohibiting smoking in certain places;
relating to education on the snoking prohibition; and
providing for an effective date."

Co- Chair MacKi nnon explained that that commttee had not
had an opportunity to discuss SB 1 the previous day after
public testinmony was closed. She nmentioned working with the
sponsor to produce a Senate Finance Conmmttee Substitute.
She relayed that there had been several issues raised the
previ ous day. She wondered if there were general coments
fromcomm ttee nenbers.

9:28: 05 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon conveyed that Chuck Kopp (staff to Vice-
Chair Mcciche) had net with her staff to discuss possible
changes to the legislation through anmendnent or commttee
substitute. She asked for M. Kopp to highlight the
possi bl e changes and convey feedback from the subconmttee
on the bill.

CHUCK KOPP, STAFF, SENATOR PETER M CClI CHE, addressed Co-
Chair MacKi nnon's question about proposed changes to the
bill. He highlighted that the bill sponsor wanted to put
the Tobacco Education and Conpliance Program back wthin
the Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS). He
detailed that the program (currently under Departnment of
Environnental Conservation) had historically been housed
within DHSS, and was |isted as one of its statutory duties.
He continued that the bill would use a tobacco conpliance
program approach to enforcenent rat her than a |aw
enf orcement approach.

M. Kopp furthered that anot her possi bl e amendnent
addressed exenption for residences used by owners who m ght
be in their last stages of life. He referred to version S
of the bill, page 2 line 12, which could be changed to "in
a building or residence that is the site of a business at
which the care of adults is provided on a fee for service
basis.”" He clarified that the potential anmendnent would
only prohibit snoking if the residence was the site of a
business at which care is provided, rather than in a
private honme where a person was receiving care. He added
that the matter had been brought to the sponsor's attention

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 03/15/16 9:12 A M



by the state long-term care Onbudsman, as well as hospice
or gani zati ons.

9:31: 08 AM

M . Kopp addressed another proposed change to the bill, on
page 2, line 22:

[ Smoking is prohibited outdoors within.]
(A) 50 feet of an entrance to a health care facility;

He explained that by deleting item (A), the distance
qualifier, another line (page 2, line 25) would apply,
which clarified the prohibition of snmoking within 20 feet
of a place where snobking was otherwise prohibited. He
continued that healthcare facilities were already included

under line 9 on the sane page of the bill, and that the
| anguage was duplicative. He added that by deleting the 50-
foot distance prohibition on snoking, it would nmake it

easier for residents in nursing homes or long term care to
access a snoking area.

M. Kopp referred to page 4, line 15 of the bill, which
pertained to "notice of prohibition,”™ through which
business were required to have signage informng that
snoking is prohibited by |aw. He shared that the Departnent
of Transportation and Public Facilities had brought an
anendnent to the sponsor that would make the prohibitory
signage nore expansive, to include the words "no puffin”
with a picture of a horned or tufted puffin. The change
would allow for the usage of existing signs rather than
having to produce new signs. He added that the sponsor had
encour aged use of a downl oadabl e/ printable graphic fromthe
internet, rather than incurring additional expenditures for
nmet al si gnage.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked about the "no puffin® sign, and
referred to the stupidity of crimnals. She thought that
using the language in question mght cause confusion, and
wondered if there was other |anguage being used that could
be included in the description.

M. Kopp referred to page 4, line 18 of the bill:

(1) reads "Snmoking Prohibited by Law -Maximum Fine
$50"; and

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 03/15/16 9:12 A M



M. Kopp clarified that line 18 was standard prohibition
| anguage for signage, and other bill [|anguage regarding
si gnage al |l owances was nore universal in nature.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked if anyone had testified regarding
the puffin bird.

M. Kopp thought the "no puffin" sign was a piece of
Al askana that had worked its way into the bill.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon indi cated that she understood.

9:35:17 AM

M. Kopp continued discussing proposed changes to the bill

He appreciated that the chair of the previous conmttee had
anended the bill to lower the fine from $100 to $50, which
the sponsor thought was appropriate. He continued that
there was a preference for going back to the original

version of the bill with regard to keeping snoking non-
conpliance a civil issue rather than a |aw enforcenent
issue. The original bill would allow the comm ssioner of

DHSS to partner with another agency (Departnent of Public
Safety) to enforce the smoking prohibition. He noted that
the sanme configuration was wused in a spice prevention
program and other itens. He reiterated that enforcing the
bill through citation was preferred, and enphasized the
i nportance of the tobacco conpliance program (which was
| argely voluntary) rather than getting the judiciary system
i nvol ved.

M. Kopp noted that the effective date of the bill needed
to be anended.

Senator Dunleavy asked for clarification regarding marine
vessel s and the prohibition of snoking.

Co-Chair MacKinnon clarified that marine vessels were
addressed on page 2, line 15 of the bill.

Senator Dunleavy asked if enclosed fish processors were
exenpt fromthe snoking ban.

M. Kopp clarified that fish processors were short-based

fisheries vessels, and enclosed working environnents, and
t herefore woul d be subject to a snoking prohibition.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 03/15/16 9:12 A M



Senat or Dunl eavy asked about a hypothetical business in a
residence in which the proprietors snoked.

M. Kopp stated that currently an office such as the one
Senat or Dunl eavy nentioned would qualify as a workpl ace and
be subject to the snoking prohibition.

Senator O son asked about vessels venturing outside of
state waters, and wondered if they would be exenpt fromthe
statute.

M. Kopp indicated that state law would apply to state
waters, and beyond state waters, federal |aws would apply.
He thought that waters within two nmles were considered
under the purview of the state.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon thought Senator Bishop had indicated
state waters exceeded to three mles.

9:39:24 AM
AT EASE

9:39: 36 AM
RECONVENED

Senator Dunl eavy asked about a hypothetical situation in
which small a guiding business transported a hunter in an
ai r pl ane.

M. Kopp deferred the answer to the Legislative Legal
Department. He thought that if the situation was covered by
the bill, it would be under page 1, lines 8 and 9; that
di scussed a vehicle used for public transportation. He was
not sure that what Senator Dunl eavy described would qualify
as public transportation.

Co-Chair MacKinnon directed attention to a definition of
prohibited area |listed on page 2 |ine 10:

(5) in avehicle that is a place of enploynent;
Co- Chair MacKi nnon interpreted that the bill |anguage woul d

include the hypothetical scenario Senator Dunleavy had
descri bed.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 03/15/16 9:12 A M



M. Kopp concurred, but agreed to verify to get a
definitive answer.

Senat or Bi shop asked if there was a possible anendnent that
woul d be offered to page 2, line 12:

(7) in a residence at which the care of adults is
provided on a fee-for-service basis;

M. Kopp answered in the affirmative.

9:41:10 AM

Senator Bishop asked about in-hone health care providers,
and wondered if an anmendnment would allow the care providers
to snoke in the residence.

M. Kopp stated that it wuld be a personal care
attendant's decision as to whether to step outside if a
resident was snoking. He clarified that the amendnent being
considered would allow individuals to snmoke iif the
resi dence was not defined a place of business. He continued
that the intent of the anendnent was to allow snokers to
snoke in their own hone.

Senat or Bi shop wanted clarification as to the enploynent of
a personal care attendant.

M. Kopp clarified that nost personal care attendants were
part of care groups or |arger providers, but there were
al so single entities.

Senator Hoffman asked if bed and breakfast establishnents
were exenpt or covered under this |egislation.

M. Kopp did not have the information, and agreed to | ook
in to it. He pondered that bed and breakfasts were a place
of busi ness.

Senat or Hof fman asked for the bill reference on the topic
of bed and breakfast establishments.

Co-Chair MacKinnon noted that there was discussion of
hotels and notels starting on page 2, line 8 of the bill.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 03/15/16 9:12 A M



M. Kopp referred to page 2, line 6, suggesting that if a
bed and breakfast was defined as a place of enploynment, it
coul d be considered a prohibited area.

SB 1 was HEARD and HELD in conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon di scussed the upcom ng schedul e.
#

ADJ QURNVENT
9:45:45 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 9:45 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 11 03/15/16 9:12 A M



